#### **Public Document Pack**



Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Julie Muscroft

Governance and Commissioning

PO Box 1720

Huddersfield

HD1 9EL

Tel: 01484 221000

Please ask for: Sheila Dykes

Email: sheila.dykes@kirklees.gov.uk

Monday 12 June 2023

### **Notice of Meeting**

Dear Member

#### **Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee**

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee will meet in the Meeting Room 3 - Town Hall, Huddersfield at 2.00 pm on Tuesday 20 June 2023.

This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council's website.

The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports attached which give more details.

Julie Muscroft

mund

Service Director - Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting.

## The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee members are:-

#### Member

Councillor Elizabeth Smaje (Chair) Councillor Bill Armer Councillor Andrew Cooper Councillor Yusra Hussain Councillor Jackie Ramsay

# Agenda Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached

**Pages** 1: **Membership of Committee** To receive apologies for absence of Members who are unable to attend the meeting. 2: 1 - 4 **Minutes of Previous Meetings** To approve the Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 18<sup>th</sup> April and 24<sup>th</sup> May 2023. 5 - 6 3: Interests The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 4: Admission of the Public Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to be discussed in private. 5: **Deputations/Petitions** The Committee will receive any petitions and/or deputations from

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10, Members of the

and responsibilities.

members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular issue of concern. A member of the public can also submit a petition at the meeting relating to a matter on which the body has powers

Public must submit a deputation at least three clear working days in advance of the meeting and shall subsequently be notified if the deputation shall be heard. A maximum of four deputations shall be heard at any one meeting.

#### 6: Public Question Time

To receive any public questions.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 11, the period for the asking and answering of public questions shall not exceed 15 minutes.

Any questions must be submitted at least three clear working days in advance of the meeting.

#### 7: Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant - Progress Report

7 - 18

The Committee will receive a report which provides an update on the work of the Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board since the introduction of the Armed Forces Bill 2021.

Contact: Vina Randhawa - Democracy Manager

#### 8: Council Financial Management

The Committee will receive a presentation giving an overview of the Council's financial position and will agree the process for scrutiny for 2023-24.

Contact: Dean Langton – Finance Service Director

#### 9: Allocation of Co-optees 2023-24

19 - 22

The Committee will consider the allocation of co-optees to the Scrutiny Panels for the 2023-24 municipal year.

Contact: Sheila Dykes - Principal Governance Officer

Contact Officer: Sheila Dykes

#### **KIRKLEES COUNCIL**

#### **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE**

#### **Tuesday 18th April 2023**

Present: Councillor Elizabeth Smaje (Chair)

Councillor Andrew Marchington

Councillor Jackie Ramsay

Apologies: Councillor Yusra Hussain

Councillor John Taylor

#### 72 Membership of Committee

Apologies were received from Councillors Yusra Hussain and John Taylor.

#### 73 Minutes of Previous Meeting

#### Resolved -

That the minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 6<sup>th</sup> February and 7<sup>th</sup> March 2023 be agreed as a correct record.

#### 74 Interests

No interests were declared.

#### 75 Admission of the Public

All items were considered in public session.

#### 76 Deputations/Petitions

No deputations or petitions were received.

#### 77 Scrutiny of Loneliness in Kirklees

A report was submitted which provided an update on the progress of the work of the Committee in looking at the issue of loneliness in Kirklees.

Members discussed the additional areas that they wished to cover, prior to giving consideration to their conclusions and recommendations. It was noted that:

- The evidence at both national and local level indicated the impact of loneliness was highest amongst young people; those aged 16 to 24 years, and people in the most deprived areas.
- It was considered that there was a need for some work to be undertaken in education settings to assist young people in being able to communicate effectively in respect of their wellbeing.

#### Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee - 18 April 2023

#### Resolved -

- (1) That all those groups and individuals that had provided evidence to the Committee to date be thanked for taking the time to make a contribution to this piece of work.
- (2) That further evidence be sought in respect of:
- (i) the views of young people in relation to:
  - What opportunities they have/ what provision is in place to allow them to make/maintain social connections.
  - How they find out about what is available.
  - If there are better ways to communicate that information.
  - The barriers to accessing provision.
  - What would they like to see/how could things be improved.
- (ii) What is done, or could be done, with young people, at an early age, to assist them in acquiring life skills on how to make and build connections, to better understand loneliness and to equip them to address it.

#### 78 Lead Members' Updates

The Lead Members for the Children's Scrutiny Panel and the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel updated the Committee on the work being undertaken by their panels and expressed thanks to all the members of their panels for their contributions during the last twelve months.

#### 79 Work Programme 2022/23 and 2023/24

The Committee reviewed its Work Programme for 2022/23 and had an initial discussion about the work to be undertaken during 2023/24. It was noted that a work programming workshop was to take place on 6<sup>th</sup> June.

The Chair expressed her thanks to all the Lead Members, the members of the standing panels and the co-optees for their participation in, and valuable contributions to, scrutiny over the last twelve months.

Contact Officer: Andrea Woodside

#### KIRKLEES COUNCIL

#### **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE**

#### Wednesday 24th May 2023

Present: Councillor Elizabeth Smaje (Chair)

Councillor Bill Armer

Councillor Andrew Cooper Councillor Yusra Hussain Councillor Jackie Ramsay

#### 1 Admission of the Public

**RESOLVED** - It was determined that all agenda items would be considered in public session.

#### 2 Appointment of Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Panels

#### **RESOLVED** -

- (1) That the appointment of the following Panels/Sub Committees be approved; (i) Calderdale and Kirklees Joint Health Scrutiny Committee (ii) West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (iii) Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel (iv) Children's Scrutiny Panel (v) Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Panel (vi) Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel.
- (2) That the Panels and Sub Committees as set out at (1) above shall not be in accordance with the requirements of Section 15 and 16 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.



	COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEE MEETINGS ETC  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee	DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee  Type of interest (eg a disclosable pecuniary interest or an "Other withdraw from the meeting lnterest") have an interest is under consideration? [Y/N]			
KIRKLEES COUNCIL			Does the nature o interest require yo withdraw from the while the item in v have an interest is consideration? [V		
KIRKLE	COUNCIL/CABINET/C DECLARATION Overview & Scr				
		Name of Councillor	Item in which you have an interest		

Signed: .....

Dated: .....

# NOTES

# **Disclosable Pecuniary Interests**

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable pecuniary interests under the new national rules. Any reference to spouse or civil partner includes any person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or as if they were your civil partner.

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes.

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.

Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest) and your council or authority -

- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
  - which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, have and which is within the area of your council or authority.

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month or longer Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - the landlord is your council or authority; and the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest.

Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in securities of a body where -

- (a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of your council or authority; and

the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that

if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

## Agenda Item 7



Name of meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Date: 20 June 2023

Title of report: Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant - Progress Report

#### **Purpose of report:**

 To provide the Committee with an update on the work of the Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board since the introduction of the Armed Forces Bill 2021

Key Decision	Yes
	Impact in 2 or more wards
Key Decision - Is it in the <u>Council's</u> Forward Plan (key decisions and private	Key Decision - No
reports)?	Private Report - No
The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by Scrutiny?	Not Applicable
Date signed off by <u>Strategic Director</u> & name.	Rachel Spencer Henshall, Director of Corporate Strategy, Commissioning and Public Health – 30/05/2023
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for Finance?	Dean Langton – 27/05/2023
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for Legal Governance and Commissioning?	Julie Muscroft - 06/06/2023
Cabinet member	Cllr Naheed Mather
portfoliohttp://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you- kmc/kmc-	
howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp	

Electoral wards affected: All

Ward councillors consulted: N/A

**Public or private: Public** 

Has GDPR been considered? Yes

#### Page 2 of the report

#### 1. Summary

- 1.1 The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise by the nation that the Armed Forces Community should be treated fairly and face no disadvantage when accessing public and commercial services, with special provision made in appropriate cases for those who have sacrificed the most.
- 1.2 The Covenant was established in its current form in 2011 and since then, ten thousand different organisations nationally have chosen to sign a pledge to honour the Covenant and support their Armed Forces Community. In Yorkshire and Humber this includes 13 Local Authorities and seven hundred other organisations including universities, charities, and businesses. As a result of this, there have been many examples around the UK of good practice to remove, mitigate, or prevent incidents of disadvantage from occurring.
- 1.3 Building on this good progress, the Armed Forces Act 2021 amended the Armed Forces Act 2006 placing a legal duty (the 'Covenant Duty') on specified public persons and bodies to have due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when exercising certain statutory functions in the fields of healthcare, education and housing.
- 1.4 The Covenant Duty (Duty) came into effect on 22 November 2022 and applies to specified bodies whether or not they have signed the Covenant pledge.
- 1.5 Kirklees Council first signed the Armed Forces Covenant (then known as the Community Covenant) in June 2012 and then re-pledged its support to the Covenant in July 2017 alongside all political groups and other partners including the military, military charities, West Yorkshire Police and Third Sector Leaders.
- 1.6 The Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board (KAFCB) was established in 2013 to encourage services and partners to offer support to the local armed forces community and make it easier for Service personnel, families and veterans to access the help and support available for the MOD, from statutory providers and from charitable and voluntary sector.
- 1.7 This report provides an overview of the work and progress of the KAFCB in relation to the Armed Forces Act 2021 placing a legal duty to have due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when exercising certain statutory functions in the fields of healthcare, education, and housing.

#### 2. Information required to take a decision.

#### 2.1 Background

- 2.1.1 Statutory Guidance on the Armed Forces Covenant Duty was published in November 2022 to assist the specified bodies comply with their legal obligations, by providing information about the Duty and those people within the Armed Forces Community who are beneficiaries of the Duty. It also highlights the issues these people can face as a result of Service life, and provides good practice in the areas of healthcare, education and housing.
- 2.1.2 The Covenant Duty (Duty) states: -

When a specified body exercises a relevant function, it must have **due regard** (see 2.1.7 below) to:

a) the unique obligations of, and sacrifices made by, the Armed Forces.

- b) the principle that it is desirable to **remove disadvantages** (see 2.1.8 below) arising for Service people from membership, or former membership, of the Armed Forces, and
- c) the principle that **special provision** (see 2.1.9 below) for Service people may be justified by the effects on such people of membership, or former membership, of the Armed Forces.
- 2.1.3 **The Armed Forces Community** the Duty applies to the following members of the Armed Forces Community, collectively defined in the Act as 'Service people':
  - a) members of the regular forces and the reserve forces.
  - b) members of British overseas territory forces who are subject to Service law.
  - c) former members of any of Her Majesty's forces who are ordinarily resident in the UK.
  - d) relevant family members of those in (a) to (c) above.

Cadet Forces are not part of the Armed Forces however they are offered opportunities to experience what Service life is like by learning new skills and engaging in adventurous activities in disciplined and well-structured organisations based on the traditions, values and standards of the armed forces.

2.1.4 For information purposes the proportion of UK armed forces veterans in Kirklees and neighbouring local authorities based on the Office for National Statistics - Census 2021 is set out in table 1 below

Table 1 - Proportion of UK armed forces veterans in Kirklees

Local Authority Area	Previously served in regular UK armed forces.		Previous in reserv armed fo		Previous in both and reso armed f	erve UK	Has presserved in armed f	n any UK	Has not previousl in any UK forces.	•
	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
Kirklees	8,942	2.6	2,371	0.7	478	0.1	11,791	3.4	334,484	96.6
Bradford	9,412	2.2	2,461	0.6	518	0.1	12,391	2.9	409,184	97.1
Calderdale	5,082	3.0	1,214	0.7	261	0.2	6,557	3.9	160,077	96.1
Leeds	14,811	2.2	4,730	0.7	860	0.1	20,401	3.1	638,070	96.9
Wakefield	9,067	3.2	2,144	0.7	512	0.2	11,723	4.1	275,815	95.9

- 2.1.5 It is important to note that the Covenant Duty is designed to raise awareness of the principles of the Covenant, the reasons for it, and in turn improve decision-making in respect of the Armed Forces Community. It requires that decisions about the development and delivery of specific services are made with conscious thought to the needs of those members of the Armed Forces Community within scope. It is not prescriptive about the approach a specified body should take to comply with their legal obligations. It also does not mandate that any particular conclusions are reached, or specific public service delivery outcomes achieved as a result of that consideration. The actions and outcomes that bodies deem appropriate will vary across the country depending on local circumstances.
- 2.1.6 The specified bodies subject to the Covenant Duty are summarised in Table 2 below.

Table 2 - Public bodies and relevant functions in scope of the Covenant Duty

Sector	Bodies in scope	Relevant functions are functions under or by virtue of the following legislative provisions
Healthcare	<ul> <li>NHS England</li> <li>Integrated care boards</li> <li>NHS Foundation Trusts</li> <li>NHS Trusts</li> <li>Local Authorities</li> </ul>	Provision of services Planning and funding Co-operation between bodies and professionals These healthcare functions are within scope of the Duty in the following settings:  NHS Primary Care services, including general practice, community pharmacies, NHS dental, NHS optometry services and public health screening services.  NHS Secondary Care services, including urgent and emergency care, hospital and community services, specialist care, mental health services, and additional needs services (as applicable).  Local authority-delivered healthcare services, including sexual health services and drug and alcohol misuse services.
Education	<ul> <li>Local Authorities</li> <li>Governing bodies of maintained schools</li> <li>Proprietors of Academies</li> <li>Non-maintained special schools</li> <li>Governing bodies of further education institutions</li> <li>Special post-16 institutions</li> </ul>	Admissions Educational attainment and curriculum Child wellbeing Transport Attendance Additional needs support Use of Service Pupil Premium funding (England only)  These education functions are within scope of the Duty in compulsory education settings, that is, primary, secondary, and, for England only, compulsory further education. The Duty does not cover nursery (early years education), higher education, or other voluntary adult education settings.
Housing	• Local Authorities	Allocations policy for social housing Tenancy strategies (England only) Homelessness Disabled Facilities Grants

2.1.7 Due Regard - The Act does not state what a body must do in order to have due regard. How a body meets the Covenant Duty, and how the Duty is reflected in relevant policies or procedures, are therefore matters for the body in question. It is about informed decision making and means that specified bodies should think about and place an appropriate amount of weight on the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when they consider all the factors relevant to how they carry out relevant functions. Therefore, specified bodies should ensure that mechanisms are in place that prompt decision-makers to assess how their decision might impact on service users from the Armed Forces Community in scope of the Duty. Bodies might wish to draw on their experience and practice in complying with other similar due regard duties. Keeping written records of how key policies and decisions have been made and documenting the factors that were considered in each decision, will help bodies demonstrate that they have had due regard to the principles of the Covenant, if challenged.

- 2.1.8 Removing Disadvantages A disadvantage is when the level of access a member of the Armed Forces Community has to goods and services, or the support they receive, is comparatively lower than that of someone in a similar position who is not a member of the Armed Forces Community, and this difference arises from one (or more) of the unique obligations and sacrifices of Service life (e.g. danger, geographical mobility, separation, stress). This principle is that it is desirable to remove all such disadvantages arising for all members of the Armed Forces Community within scope of the Duty, however, it should not be assumed that everyone associated with the Armed Forces Community experiences disadvantages because of Service life.
- 2.1.9 Special Provision special provision is the taking of actions that go beyond the support provided to reduce or remove disadvantage. These are actions that result in the provision of something bespoke, or something not normally available to the general public and the Armed Forces Community. Special provision may be justified in some cases by the effects of the unique obligations and sacrifices of Service life, especially for those that have sacrificed the most, such as the bereaved and the injured.

#### 2.2 How bodies can raise awareness of Armed Forces issues

- 2.2.1 While the Duty is not prescriptive about the actions bodies should take to promote awareness of the Duty and the issues faced by the Armed Forces Community, the Statutory Guidance has provided examples of the type of actions that they might wish to consider adopting that are based on the existing good practice of those bodies already working to deliver the Armed Forces Covenant in their local area.
- 2.2.2 The actions are outlined in table 2 below along with details of the Councils progress against each action.

#### 2.3 Progress and achievements in Kirklees

- 2.3.1 As mentioned above, disadvantage in service delivery most frequently occurs through a lack of understanding of the unique obligations and circumstances of the Armed Forces Community. That is why the aim of the new Duty is to build awareness among service providers of the Covenant's principles and the Armed Forces Community.
- 2.3.2 The table below provides an update on the progress and achievements in Kirklees based on the existing good practice contained within the Armed Forces Covenant Duty Guidance on how bodies can raise awareness of Armed Forces issues. It does highlight areas where good progress is being made and other areas that could also be considered.

Table 3 – Progress against how bodies can raise awareness of the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant.

<b>Key Actions</b>	Progress in Kirklees	Outcomes
<ul> <li>Appointing individuals</li> </ul>		
Local authorities can appoint an elected member champion.	Cabinet Member Champion & Elected Member Champion in place	The champions ensure the visibility of and
Appointing a dedicated officer, staff group, or other lead person, who can advise on and co-	An officer champion has been identified who coordinates board meetings, provides updates and briefings and acts as the point of contact.	access to services and networks that support veterans, reservists and cadets in Kirklees.

ordinate Armed Forces issues across the whole organisation.		
Promoting a single point of contact within the organisation that members of the Armed Forces Community can contact if they require assistance or advice.	The single point of contact within the Council is the armed forces officer champion, whose details are on the website.	Enable the Covenant objectives and Duty to be implemented and developed within the organisation
	Contact officers within the Council have been identified in Housing Solutions, Homes and Neighbourhoods, Education, Public Health, Employee Health Care, Adults, Personalised Care, Governance and Democracy Services to attend KAFCB meetings and act as 'champions' within their service to share information and act as the first point of contact for enquiries.	Raise awareness amongst staff of the Council's pledge and support available
	An organisation survey is planned which will help identify staff that have a military connection who may be interested in becoming service champions to raise awareness of the principles of the Covenant and the impact of Service life.	Council staff with an understanding of military life will be aware of the new statutory guidance and help consider policies and practices that will support instances where special consideration may be applicable.
Communication and Engagement		
Organising and/or attending regular meetings with Armed Forces representatives, charities, public sector representatives, the local Armed Forces presence, Armed Forces Covenant networks, and/or organisation champion(s).	Attend regional meetings and workshops for example, Veterans UK welfare / transition support masterclass for local authorities, employee recognition scheme workshops, Yorkshire and Humber network, liaison with the Armed Forces Covenant team for advice and guidance.	Improved awareness of other charities that may be able to support, including emergency support and instances where special consideration may be applicable.
Establishing and/or attending local partnership boards to	The Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board is made up of representatives from a range of council services, military charities, MOD,	
collaborate with other similar organisations, sharing best practice and information.	department for work and pensions, RAF, employment services. Meetings are arranged by the officer champion in consultation with the Chair.	Improved collaboration and partnership working to deliver outcomes
collaborate with other similar organisations, sharing best practice and	department for work and pensions, RAF, employment services. Meetings are arranged by the officer champion in consultation with the	and partnership working

	encourage collaboration and sharing of information.	
	An offer has also been made to attend the GP practice network meeting to raise awareness of the Duty, the work of the Board and explore how we can work together going forward.	
Providing a web page or material with key information and links for members of the Armed Forces Community	A dedicated armed forces webpage is available that provides information and support with housing, education, employment, health and wellbeing etc.  Based on the past 6 months the webpage had 31 page views of which 26 were unique views (average per month)	Information easily available on and offline with links to Housing, Health, Education and Employment, and to wider networks of support/information.
A clear statement of the support that members of the Armed Forces Community can expect from the organisation	Further work to be done to the webpage to make this clear	Armed Forces Community, staff and partners are aware of the Armed Forces
A mechanism for reporting actions and achievements	Regular updates are provided at Board meetings, progress reported at Council meetings.	Covenant and principles, and the support services available
A mechanism for prompting further research.	The West Yorkshire Armed Forces Covenant Survey last took place in October 2021. This was coordinated by Bradford council and although it was promoted locally did not have the reach we had hoped. Currently exploring how this can be adapted for use just in Kirklees.	Provides insight into the lived experience of members of the Armed Forces community, in particular the unique obligations and sacrifices they may make.
Training frontline staff.	The new armed forces covenant e-learning module for customer facing staff is now available for all staff via the Councils MyLearning web page. The Armed Forces Covenant Housing and Homelessness e-learning will be added to MyLearning in the next month, after which both modules will be promoted to all staff to access and number of learners will be monitored.	Raised awareness of the Armed Forces Covenant and Covenant Duty and how they may be applied. Improved support and services to the Armed Forces Community
Collaboration		
Sharing awareness, data and good practice on the Armed Forces Community within the organisation and other	Largely actioned via KAFCB plus briefings have taken place for customer service staff and legal governance and commissioning senior leadership team.	
similar organisations.	Information about the armed forces covenant duty will be shared via the intranet alongside the new e-learning for customer facing staff.	Staff are aware of the Armed Forces Covenant, Principles, Duty and statutory
	Within the Armed Forces Covenant Duty Guidance, the West Yorkshire Service Pupil Premium Resource Directory has been given as an example of good practice to support schools develop their understanding of the	guidance, the support services available, good practice and how they can support.
	Armed Forces Covenant, the Armed Forces	Page 1

Requesting more information from organisations who have	Community, and the Service Pupil Premium. This resource was produced in partnership by the 5 West Yorkshire local authorities and is shared with Kirklees schools on an annual basis.  Information share is a regular agenda item at KAFCB meetings. Also, the Yorkshire and Humber network is a good mechanism for aboring information addition and good prosting.	Improved awareness of other charities that may be able to support,
dealt with the Armed Forces Community before.	sharing information, advice and good practice.	including emergency support and instances where special consideration may be applicable.
Research		
Understanding the make- up of the Armed Forces Community in the local area.	Office for National Statistics - Census 2021 data is available – see table 1 above.  Organisation survey in development to help identify staff that have a military connection.	Better insight into the lived experience of members of the Armed Forces community, in particular the unique
Identifying gaps in knowledge.	To explore possibility of undertaking a Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Survey with the data and insight team to better understand our community.	obligations and sacrifices they may make.
Consulting online information and tools, such as the Veterans' Gateway or the Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust's Knowledge Network.	Signed up to e-newsletters for updates	Improved awareness of other charities that may be able to support members of the Armed Forces community
Conducting a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on the needs of the local Armed Forces Community and, where possible, anticipate the needs of those moving into the local area.	There is a former members of armed forces section in the KJSA. This does need updating with the latest information from the 2021 Census.  https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/specific-groups-life-events/armed-forces/  To explore options to link to a Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Survey, if developed	Better insight into the needs of the Armed Forces community in Kirklees.
Collecting and analysing data on the local Armed Forces Community, including by asking service users about their Armed Forces status.	Personalised care service is looking into the recording and reporting system used by GPs to identify veterans and service users that have a military connection. Based on good practice, to develop a consistent approach within the Council to identify service users that have a military connection.	Improving identification of local Veteran/ Armed Forces community in Kirklees.
Consulting national data sources such as the census, and statistics on the locations of Armed Forces pension and compensation recipients and recipients of Service Pupil Premium.	No current activity	

Consulting research and best-practice guides, such as the Forces in Mind Trust's 'Our Community Our Covenant' report.  Engaging regularly with service end-users who are members of the Armed Forces Community.	No current activity  No current activity, currently exploring opportunities	
• Vision		
Having an action plan that is regularly monitored and reviewed.	The action plan has been co-produced with members of the KAFCB and is reviewed at board meetings.  The Leader and Chief Executive have agreed a small budget to help deliver action plan priorities.	Improved collaboration and partnership working to deliver outcomes
Conducting regular policy reviews	The KAFCB has been consulted in the Kirklees Council Housing Allocations Policy Review.  The Councils Cabinet Report Guidance has been amended to include information on the Armed Forces Covenant to help ensure that services pay due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when developing policy and making decisions. This will require them to keep written records of how key policies and decisions have been made, particularly in the areas of Healthcare, Housing and Education and document the factors considered to demonstrate that we have had due regard to the principles of the Covenant.  The Council's new online Integrated Impact Assessment form and associated guidance now includes the armed forces as a protected group and services will need to ensure they take account of issues directly related to service in the Armed Forces, and where appropriate, that special consideration is given, for example those who have suffered injuries, and in the case of the bereaved.  The Council offer a guaranteed interview scheme for armed forces Veterans (a guaranteed interview will be offered to individuals who have served in Her Majesty's Armed Forces and meet the essential criteria for the role as outlined in the Job Profile)  The council is committed to granting additional paid leave of 10 days per year to Reservists, specifically to enable them to attend their annual camp.	Enable the Covenant objectives and Duty to be implemented and developed within the organisation

- 2.3.3 The Covenant Duty guidance provides examples of the disadvantages arising from the unique obligations and sacrifices of Service life that are most likely to be experienced by Service families and veterans in terms of healthcare, education and housing.
- 2.3.4 The officer champion is currently cross referencing the KAFCB action plan to ensure the priority actions align to the guidance both in terms of raising awareness of the issues, preventing disadvantage and ensuring services pay due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when developing policy and making decisions, particularly in the areas of Healthcare, Housing and Education. The revised action plan will be shared at the KAFCB meeting in June.

#### 3. Implications for the Council

#### 3.1 Working with People

The Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board has developed an action plan that has been co-produced with military personnel, military charities, third sector organisations, council staff and partners. The action plan is informed by partners sharing their knowledge and expertise, intelligence and lived experience.

#### 3.2 Working with Partners

The Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Board (KAFCB) is chaired by a Kirklees Councillor and is represented by a range of organisations who network, share good practice and work together. It is represented by: -

- Kirklees Council Democracy & Place Based Working, Civic Office, Employee Healthcare, Pupil Admissions, Homes and Neighbourhoods, Kirklees Housing Solutions, Adult Services, Community Plus Team, Public Health, Adults & Health Services
- Military Regional Employer Engagement Director, MOD Welfare Management, RAF Families Federation
- Military Charities Royal British Legion, The Rifles Association, Regular Forces Employment Association, RFEA the Forces Employment Charity, Officers Association, Richmond Fellowship, Help for Heroes
- Health Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust
- Local Third Sector Organisations Royal British Legion (Huddersfield Branch), 3 Yorks Association Huddersfield, CHART Kirklees, The Welcome Centre, Change Grow Live
- Locally based Mental Health support Salute, counselling and psychotherapy support services
- West Yorkshire Police Partnerships and Liaison Services
- Kirklees Citizens Advice
- Department for Works and Pensions

#### 3.3 Place Based Working

Understanding the make-up of the Kirklees Armed Forces Community is a challenge, however, is important to our approach. By working with partners and networks we hope to develop an action plan that reflects the priorities, needs and opportunities for the Armed Forces Community across the district.

#### 3.4 Climate Change and Air Quality

No Change

#### 3.5 Improving outcomes for children

Due to the high mobility associated with the military lifestyle, children of serving members are likely to experience a number of school moves, some of which may occur at short notice and within the school term. The Armed Forces Bill 2021-22 will help raise awareness and understanding within the organisation of the unique obligations and circumstances of the Armed Forces Community.

#### 3.6 Financial Implications for the people living or working in Kirklees.

An amount of £20k has been set aside to support the work on the Armed Forces Covenant, funded by way of a one-off contribution from the Council's Reserves.

#### 3.7 Other (e.g. Integrated Impact Assessment/Legal/Financial or Human Resources)

 The relevant functions in scope of the Duty are within the fields of healthcare, education, and housing services. These are key areas where delivery of the Covenant remains inconsistent and where disadvantages to members of the Armed Forces Community have commonly arisen. A lack of awareness of issues affecting the Armed Forces Community can be a major factor in some incidents of disadvantage.

#### Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)

The new online IIA form and associated guidance now includes the armed forces as a protected group and services will need to ensure they take account of issues directly related to service in the Armed Forces, and where appropriate, that special consideration is given, for example those who have suffered injuries, and in the case of the bereaved.

#### 4. Consultation

Members of the KAFCB have been involved in considering how they and the Council can help remove disadvantages arising for Service people from membership, or former membership, of the armed forces and have developed an action plan based on sharing data, information and the existing good practice of those bodies already working to deliver the Armed Forces Covenant in their local area.

#### 5. Next steps and timelines

- Work will continue to develop the KAFCB action plan so that it aligns to the Armed Forces Covenant Duty guidance.
- The Council's Armed Forces webpage will be updated to give a clear statement of what members of the Armed Forces Community can expect from the organisation in terms of support.
- The new armed forces covenant e-learning module for customer facing staff will be made available for staff to complete via the MyLearning portal and then promoted to all staff along with the Armed Forces Covenant Housing and Homelessness elearning module.
- Carry out an organisation survey by July to help identify staff that have a military connection who may be interested in becoming service champions.
- Liaise with the GPs leading on Military Veteran Support (PCNs) to attend the GP practice network meeting and support their involvement in the KAFCB.
- Liaise with the data and insight service to explore possibility of undertaking a Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Survey to better understand our community.
- Work with services to develop a consistent approach to identify service users that have a military connection.

  Page 17

#### 6. Officer recommendations and reasons

Members are asked to note the work of the KAFCB to date, the immediate priorities and provide feedback and suggestions on any other actions the Council could take to raise awareness, prevent disadvantage and ensuring services pay due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant when developing policy and making decisions, particularly in the areas of Healthcare, Housing and Education.

#### 7. Cabinet Portfolio Holder's recommendations

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder is supportive of the work undertaken to date and welcomes comments and feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

#### 8. Contact officer

Vina Randhawa, Democracy Manager Email: Vina.randhawa@kirklees.gov.uk

Tel: 01484 221000

#### 9. Background Papers and History of Decisions

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, 21 December 2021: Kirklees Armed Forces Covenant Progress Report and Armed Forces Bill 2021/22 - <a href="https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s44265/Kirklees%20Armed%20Forces%20">https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s44265/Kirklees%20Armed%20Forces%20</a> Covenant%20and%20Armed%20Forces%20Bill%202021-22%20002.pdf

#### 10. Service Director responsible

Joanne Bartholomew, Service Director, Development - Growth & Regeneration Rachel Spencer Henshall, Director of Corporate Strategy, Commissioning and Public Health

# Agenda Item 9



Name of meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Date: 20 June 2023

Title of report: Allocation of Scrutiny Co-optees for the 2023/24 Municipal Year

Purpose of report: To consider the allocation of co-optees to Scrutiny Panels for the

2023-24 municipal year.

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in spending or saving £250k or more, or to have a significant effect on two or more electoral wards?	Not applicable
Key Decision - Is it in the <u>Council's</u> <u>Forward Plan (key decisions and private reports)?</u>	Not applicable
The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by Scrutiny?	Not applicable
Date signed off by <u>Strategic Director</u> & name	Not applicable
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for Finance?	Not applicable
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for Legal Governance and Commissioning?	Samantha Lawton, 7-6-23
Cabinet member portfolio	N/A

Electoral wards affected: All

Ward councillors consulted: Not applicable.

Public or private: Public Report

Has GDPR been considered? Yes.

#### 1. Summary

- 1.1 At the beginning of each municipal year the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee is required to re-appoint the voluntary and statutory co-optees and allocate them to Panels or the Co-optee Pool.
- 1.2 Voluntary co-optees generally serve a maximum term of four years. Statutory cooptees are nominated by the Diocese or apply in their role as a school governor. Where a co-optee is not involved in any work for a year, then that year does not count towards their service.

#### 2. Information required to take a decision

- 2.1 At the start of the municipal year 2022/23 there were a total of eleven co-optees involved in scrutiny, three of whom resigned during the year.
- 2.2 In May 2023 the scrutiny structure changed as set out below:
  - The Corporate Panel was dissolved, with the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee taking over responsibility for its areas of scrutiny focus.
  - A Regeneration and Growth Panel was established.
  - The remit of the Economy and Neighbourhoods Panel was altered, to remove those areas of scrutiny that would now be considered by the new Regeneration and Growth Panel, with a subsequent change in name to better reflect its focus: the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Panel.
- 2.3 Two of the co-optees completed their 4 year term at the end of 2022-23 but were asked to continue for an additional year. Both were asked to continue for an additional twelve months.
- 2.4 Set out below is a table that includes the current and new co-optees and the proposed allocations for the 2023/24 municipal year.

Name	Allocation 2022/23	Proposed Allocation 2023/24
Toni Bromley	Children's	Children's
Helen Clay	Health and Adult Social Care	Health and Adult Social Care
Jane Emery	Economy and Neighbourhoods	Environment and Climate Change
Chris Friend	Economy and Neighbourhoods	Regeneration and Growth
Oliver Gibson	Children's	Children's
Garry Kitchin	Corporate	Environment and Climate Change
Jonathan Milner	Economy and Neighbourhoods	Regeneration and Growth
Kim Taylor	Health and Adult Social Care	Health and Adult Social Care

#### 3. Implications for the Council

There are no specific implications for the Council at this point.

#### 4. Consultees and their opinions

No consultation was appropriate in respect of the contents of this report.

#### 5. Next steps and timelines

Subject to the decision of the Committee, the co-optees will be advised of their allocated Panel.

#### 6. Officer recommendations and reasons

- 6.1 That the allocation of scrutiny co-optees for the 2023/24 municipal year, as set out in paragraph 2.4, be agreed.
- 6.2 That the existing serving co-optees be thanked for their continued commitment and contribution to the work of scrutiny in Kirklees.
- 6.3 That the following retiring co-optees be thanked for their contribution to the work of scrutiny:

Kristina Parkes James Ryan Graeme Sunderland

#### 7. Cabinet Portfolio Holder's recommendations

Not applicable.

#### 8. Contact officer

Sheila Dykes, Principal Governance Officer Tel 01484 221000 Email: sheila.dykes@kirklees.gov.uk

•

#### 9. Service Director responsible

Julie Muscroft, Service Director, Legal, Governance and Commissioning

